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University of Suffolk Ltd 

Strategic report for the year ended 31 July 2021 

The directors present their strategic report for the University of Suffolk Ltd for the year ended 
31 July 2021 . 

Business review and principal activities 
The principal activity of the company for the year under review was that of higher education, 
together with such activities as are relevant for its facilitation. Additional activities include the 
provision of consultancy and applied research services. 

The University of Suffolk is an independent university with its own teaching degree awarding 
powers, having gained this status in August 2016. Achieving institutional independence has 
allowed the institution to establish itself within an increasingly competitive higher education 
market. 

The Directors confirm they have discharged their duties under Section 172 of the Companies 
Act through the planning, long term vision and activities laid out in the strategic report . 

The University's 'Transforming Lives and Our Region ' publication lays out its strategy and vision 
for the period 2020-2030. This is supplemented by five supporting strategies: Learning, 
Teaching and Assessment; Research and Scholarly Activity; Business Engagement; 
International ; People and Places. The University's Board is committed to the delivery of the 
strategic plan, whilst also being mindful of the competitive challenges and risks that the sector 
environment presents. The University's financial strategy aims to deliver long-term financial 
sustainability for the institution whilst supporting the delivery of its overarching strategy. 
Significant growth in annual income over the period of the plan is expected, largely driven by 
student number growth , including that achieved through UK and overseas partnerships. 

As the published strategy and vision states, the University's mission is to transform lives and 
its region through education, training , research , business and community engagement. To fulfil 
this purpose the institution will be recognised as an empowering force for individual and 
community growth and development. It will be recognised for the major contribution it makes to 
the health and wellbeing of the people in its region and acknowledged for lasting social and 
sustainable economic transformation . Its students will come from diverse backgrounds and, as 
part of a connected community, its staff and students will carry the University's values of 
inclusiveness and tolerance. 

The measures by which the University assesses its performance are reviewed each year as 
part of a strategic planning round and comprise five core elements: 

• Student population 
• Student satisfaction 
• Student employability 
• Staff satisfaction 
• Income diversification 

Each successive planning round updates individual school and directorate plans and 
performance indicators to ensure they remain fully aligned to these core elements. 

The University continues to develop its portfolio and introduce new courses in subjects to meet 
strong student demand. The University also plans to maintain its offer of higher and degree 
apprenticeships to levy paying employers in selected subjects. 

The benefits to students and to the wider community arising from philanthropic giving to the 
institution will continue to be promoted. Fundraising efforts are aligned to the strategic priorities 
of the University and will complement the institution's own investment plans. 

Student enrolment numbers for 2020/21 were 12,226 FTEs, which represents 46% growth 
compared to 2019/20. Given the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 and the 
consequent exceptional disruption to the 2020/21 recruitment cycle, the University set prudent 
targets for student enrolments in September 2020. These targets were exceeded and, 
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additionally, the University's recently established partnerships with private providers in other 
parts of the UK began to mature. Together, these factors led to an increase in overall 
enrolments for 2020 entry . 

The nationwide lockdown in March 2020 had led all courses to move to online delivery for the 
remainder of the 2019/20 academic year. Whilst this presented many challenges and required 
additional investment to deliver, the transition was successfully achieved. Student feedback 
has been generally positive and appreciative of the institution's efforts to ensure that courses 
remained of a high quality and were completed on time. 

Courses continued to be predominantly taught online throughout the 2020/21 academic year. 
The University set aside a £1 m financial contingency to meet the exceptional costs arising of 
supporting students and staff to operate in this way. Staff and student wellbeing was a major 
concern throughout the year and additional forms of support to assist with maintaining mental 
and physical health were made available to both students and staff. Student hardship funds 
were substantially supplemented and the eligibility criteria broadened to reflect the changing 
circumstances and impacts on students. One example was the expansion of IT hardship 
funding to address concerns over digital poverty amongst students. 

The ongoing pandemic also led the higher education sector to experience significant disruption 
to the 2020/21 recruitment cycle, impacting on recruitment activities and the application process. 
However, the University predicts its total student enrolments for 2021/22 to be 15,500 FTEs, 
representing growth of 27%. Much of this growth relates to the further development of 
partnership arrangements with students studying courses with providers under a validation 
agreement with the University. This growth is consistent with the University's strategy to engage 
with a small number of well-established private partners in the UK and overseas. Each partner 
operates under an agreed student recruitment limit in order that growth can be managed 
appropriately. 

The University continues to maintain its successful track record of delivering high quality pre
registration and post-registration nurse education. Maintaining the quality of its delivery and 
increasing commissioned volumes with its NHS partners remains a high priority for the 
University. The institution worked closely with NHS partners to ensure that nursing students 
could transition into a working environment as soon as possible to respond to the exceptional 
demands placed on healthcare services at the height of the COVID-19 pandemic. Substantial 
new health and wellbeing facilities are being established on campus through the refurbishment 
of the existing East Building. 

In accordance with its institutional strategy, the University is actively seeking to diversify its 
income streams, particularly from research , enterprise and consultancy activities. Total income 
from these sources during the year was £408k (2020: £334k) . 

Financial highlights 
In 2020/21 , the University of Suffolk reports a surplus of £10,728k (2020: surplus of £14,545k) . 
Excluding the movement on the USS Recovery Provision of £184k (2020: credit of £7, 137k), 
the University generated a surplus of £10,912k (2020: £7,408k). 

The net cash inflow in the year from operating activities was £20,301 k (2020: £9,21 Ok) and the 
net cash outflow from capital expenditure was £1 ,720k (2020: £22k) . The overall increase in 
cash and cash equivalents in the year was £16,835k (2020: £7 ,303k) , resulting in a year-end 
balance of cash and cash equivalents of £38,738k (2020: £21 ,903k) and bank debt of £16,678k 
(2020: £17,256k) . 
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Key financial indicators 
The company's key financial indicators during the year were as follows: 

Total income 
Surplus 
Surplus as a proportion of total income 

Proportion of income generated from: 
Office for Students (formerly HEFCE) Grants 
Education Contracts 
Tuition Fees 
Other Income 

Total balance sheet funds 

2021 
£'000 

97,451 
10,728 
11.0% 

2021 
£'000 

5% 
1% 

90% 
4% 

2021 
£'000 

32,550 

2020 
£'000 

71 ,054 
14,545 
20.5% 

2020 
£'000 

5% 
3% 

86% 
6% 

2020 
£'000 

22,020 

The increase in total balance sheet funds to £32,550k (2020: £22 ,020k) arises from the surplus 
for the year, partly offset by the actuarial loss on Local Government Pension Scheme of £198k. 

Financial outlook 
Following an assessment of investment needs for the coming year and available cash reserves, 
the Board has approved a surplus revenue budget of £11 ,978k for 2021/22, noting that this 
would produce a net cash inflow from operating activities for the year of £18,033m and provide 
for capital expenditure of £7, 1 00k (net capital expenditure after capital receipts £600k) . 

A key focus of the University's strategic plan is to deliver sustainable growth, and the Executive 
Committee is committed to prioritising initiatives which enhance the experience of its students 
and other service users, thus increasing the appeal of the University to local , national and 
international audiences. 

The successful delivery of the institution's strategy in the coming years will require a particular 
focus on developing areas of distinctiveness within its portfolio alongside areas of existing 
strength . The Suffolk model of guided independent learning places students at the centre of the 
learning experience, supported by curriculum content, pedagogical approaches and enhanced 
academic skills. Academic staff will provide frameworks for interaction and collaboration , 
facilitating enquiry-led learning and reflection, giving students the ability to address their 
learning and development needs. 

Developing research activity and outputs will be an important factor in ensuring the University 
develops and matures as an academic institution. The coming year will see investment in new 
senior leadership for research as well as the appointment of professorial leads in the 
University's distinctive subject areas: Social Justice & Crime; Digital Futures; Sustainability; 
Health and Wellbeing ; and Leadership & Management. 

To compete effectively within its markets, the University will invest in its services and facilities ; 
the coming five years will see significant annual investment in estates and digital services to 
students and staff. Spring 2020 saw the completion of The Hold , a partnership project between 
Suffolk County Council and the University which has received funding from the Heritage Lottery 
Fund. The Hold offers a bespoke home for the majority of Suffolk's unique archival collections, 
as well as state-of-the-art public facilities and teaching spaces for the University. This includes 
dedicated access to a 200-seat lecture theatre and two seminar rooms within the new building. 
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2021/22 will be the first full academic year that the University will be able to utilise the new 
facilities . 

Planned for completion by Spring 2022, the University is undertaking a £13m refurbishment of 
the East Building on campus. The complete internal and external refit of the building will provide 
a new location for the UK's first Integrated Care Academy, as well as a dedicated home for 
health and wellbeing research and teaching for the School of Health and Sports Science. 
Working with a range of NHS and local authority partners, the building will house two floors of 
brand-new clinical simulation facilities , a new sports and exercise facility , physiotherapy 
simulation laboratories, a working radiography imaging suite , therapeutic radiotherapy areas, 
and working clinics for counselling and psychotherapy, physiotherapy and sports therapy. In 
addition to creating a centre of excellence for integrated health and social care practices, the 
new facility will help to deliver a highly skilled graduate workforce - each year providing in 
excess of 200 qualified nurses, 20 physiotherapists, and 50 paramedics alongside 36 social 
workers, and psychotherapists. 

The University has received approval of its Access and Participation Plan 2020/21 to 2024/25 
from the Office for Students (OfS). The University's tuition fees for UK full-time undergraduates 
for 2021/22 entry will be £8,220 for Foundation degrees and £9,250 for Bachelor degrees. 
Tuition fees for UK part-time undergraduates will be £8,220 (pro-rata) for Foundation degrees 
and £8,724 (pro-rata) for Bachelor degrees. 2021/22 is the first year that new European Union 
students will no longer be able to access student finance on the same basis as UK students. 
Re-enrolling European Union students will continue to pay the same fees as UK students. 

In 2020/21 , the first year of the Access and Participation Plan, the University spent £3.0m on 
student access and participation measures against four categories: Access Investment; 
Financial Support; Disability Support; and Research and Evaluation. Changes were made to 
students' financial support such as opening up bursaries to re-enrolling students and also 
introducing a new DTS bursary to help support students in purchasing laptops or other 
technology needed for their studies . Given the need to continue to support students through 
the COVID-19 pandemic, funds have also been repurposed towards equipment, technical 
capabilities and digital materials to enable virtual widening participation events to be delivered, 
including a virtual summer school. · 

Trade Union Facility Time 
The University is required to report on Trade Union Facility Time under the Trade Union (Facility 
Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017. The annual reporting period for this data 
is 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. 

Number of employees who were relevant union 
officials during the relevant period 

Full time equivalent employee number 

Percentage of time spent on facility time 
0% 
1%-50% 
51%-99% 
100% 

Percentage of pay bill spend on facility time 
Total cost of facility time 
Provide the total pay bill 
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time 

8 

6.9 

Number of employees 

8 

£39k 
£23,028k 
0.171% 
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Paid trade union activities 
Hours spent on facility time 
Hours spent on paid trade union activities 
Time spent on trade union activities as a percentage of 
total paid facility time hours 

Principal risks and uncertainties and financial risk management 

1,735 
364 

20.98% 

The University has in place a risk register which is regularly reviewed by the Executive 
Committee and is overseen by the Audit and Risk Committee. Any changes to existing risks, 
including the impact, likelihood and mitigating actions taken , are reported to the Board. The key 
risks identified are informed by the University's strategic plan and are also linked to the internal 
audit planning process. The risk register includes a system of scoring designed to assess the 
likelihood and impact of the risks identified. In this way the register identifies for each risk: 

• the gross risk (before any mitigating actions are undertaken); 
• the mitigating actions identified and the senior manager responsible; and 
• the net risk (assuming that such actions are undertaken and successful) . 

This method allows the Audit and Risk Committee and senior managers to monitor the 
mitigations required . Outlined below are the principal risks together with the mitigating actions 
identified. 

Fail to adequately mitigate exposure to increased pension risk 
We engage closely with employer bodies and represent the University's position in all 
responses to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and Universities Superannuation 
Scheme (USS), especially during consultations. A subgroup of the Board actively monitors the 
USS risks and oversees the University's responses. The currently projected USS funding 
deficits over the longer term are significant and of concern for the whole higher education sector. 
However, the risks for individual institutions, whilst also significant, are partly mitigated due to 
the mutuality of the USS scheme. We continue to explore options to mitigate exposure and 
formulate a response and action plan in line with the outcomes of the consultations. We also 
consider worse case scenarios in our financial planning . In relation to employee relations, we 
continue to communicate the University's position transparently with staff and unions. 

Fail to comply with the requirements of regulators other than Office for Students (OfS) 
The University works with a number of regulators in addition to the Office for Students in its role 
as the primary regulator for higher education in England. Often, such regulators have different 
requirements to usual higher education practice and in many cases the regulator will have a 
single set of processes and assessment criteria across different sectors and educational 
settings. Resourcing and meeting the requirements of regulators (for example Ofsted in respect 
of degree apprenticeship provision) has proved challenging within the higher education sector 
as it requires different resourcing models to ensure adherence to the regulatory framework. In 
such cases the University has put in place dedicated leadership to ensure compliance 
monitoring processes are in place, adequate risk assessments are undertaken and continual 
improvement plans adhered to. 

Fail to mitigate or respond to cyber security or other attacks on our own or outsourced IT 
infrastructure and systems 
External cyber security attacks have rapidly escalated in recent years. The University has 
responded by implementing proactive threat reviews and immediate patching for anything 
identified. Risk profiling is undertaken for all threats not able to be fully mitigated. Regular 
communications and awareness building across the organisation is vital. The University works 
with external partners to assess the current cyber risk profile for the institution and to undertake 
penetration testing . 

Fail to recruit sufficient students 
Increased competition continues to be experienced in the local , regional and national market. 
The COVID-19 pandemic has dramatically impacted traditional recruitment cycles and 
admissions processes. Robust digitally focussed marketing is delivered to a diverse market and 
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increasingly efficient recruitment processes are developed. Strategic plans for growth are 
progressed via a robust planning process including the assessment of individual subject areas 
and markets. Portfolio development is a priority. Improved national reputation , brand and 
visibility is carefully articulated through each successive marketing campaign. 

Fail to manage the impact of the CO VID-19 pandemic 
The widespread impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the operation of the higher education 
sector and the national economy as a whole has created a range of risks that could affect the 
business continuity and long-term sustainability of institutions. Alongside this, the operational 
risks of ensuring the campus remains COVID-secure and minimises the risk to the health and 
safety of the University community is paramount. The University continues to actively monitor 
the situation daily and works in partnership with Suffolk Public Health on its outbreak control 
planning. The wellbeing of staff and students is supported through links with various 
organisations including occupational health and Suffolk Mind. Regular communication with 
applicants, students and staff includes video and other messaging on safe behaviours and 
promotion of vaccinations and regular testing whilst attending campus. 

Fail to generate sufficient funds for investment 
The annual strategic planning approach provides a vehicle for highlighting medium to longer 
term investment demands. Effective budget management will continue, ensuring efficient use 
of scarce resources. The maintenance of strong cash balances to support future capital 
investment is a high priority within our financial planning . Strong strategic relationships with key 
funding stakeholders are maintained and opportunities for partner, commercial and 
philanthropic funding are explored. 

Fail to achieve targets in relation to student satisfaction, retention and employability 
The strategy for Learning, Teaching and Assessment is being implemented, taking forward 
proposals in relation to retention and progression with a model of guided independent learning, 
placing students at the centre of the learning experience. The introduction of 'block and blend' 
teaching delivery should assist progression and retention of students. A Student Experience 
Task Group is established to implement changes and monitor progress. UoS graduates are 
employed as Student Experience Ambassadors to work with course teams and students to 
identify and address challenges students face. Academic and professional seNices staff work 
closely- with external partners to ensure that curriculum design changes enable good 
employability outcomes for graduates. 

Approved by the Board and signed by its order by 

Mr T J Greenacre 
Company Secretary 
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Directors 
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial 
statements are listed on page 1 of the annual report. 

Financial risk management 
The directors consider the key business risks and uncertainties, including financial risks, 
affecting the company to be covered within the 'Principal risks and uncertainties and financial 
risk management' section of the Strategic report on pages 5 - 7. 

Employee involvement and equal opportunities 
The University is fully committed to a policy that provides all employees with equality of 
opportunity for employment, career development and selection on the basis of ability, 
qualifications and suitability for the job. Senior management, managers and employees are 
required to promote equality of opportunity and to take full account of the policy in their day to 
day work . 

The University values the diversity of those studying and working at the institution and it is 
committed to developing policies, processes and teaching and learning practices to tackle 
inequality and exclusion. The University has an established Equality , Diversity and Inclusion 
Committee and has put in place monitoring mechanisms to understand the impact of our 
policies and procedures on students and staff. This includes collecting data on all protected 
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010. The University publishes an annual Equality 
and Diversity Report on its website, alongside with annual Gender Pay Gap Reports . 

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind 
the aptitudes of the applicant concerned : the University is a "two ticks" employer. In the event 
of members of staff becoming disabled, all reasonable steps are taken to ensure that their 
employment with the University continues and that appropriate training and/or reasonable 
adjustments to their employment conditions are arranged. 

Consultation with employees takes place through a number of meetings throughout the year, 
with the aim of ensuring that their views are taken into account when decisions are made that 
are likely to affect their interests and that all employees are aware of the general progress of 
the company as a whole. 

Consultative meetings include formal consultation with trade union representatives, periodic 
attendance by senior managers at local team meetings, all staff forums and project specific 
group work. The University undertakes a biennial staff survey which seeks the views of staff 
about a wide range of issues affecting their employment; results and subsequent action plans 
are published widely. 

Vice-Chancellor's Remuneration 
The University's Remuneration Committee determines and reports to the Board on the salary 
of the Vice-Chancellor and other members of the Executive. No individual is present for a 
discussion which involves the determination of their own salary . The Committee determines 
that the salary of the Vice-Chancellor is appropriate to the institutional context, size, and the 
responsibilities of the role. In addition, the Committee considers the public interest in all forms 
of payment made to senior staff. The agreed salary of the Vice Chancellor allows for cost of 
living rises in line with national agreement on increases for the sector. Performance of the 
Vice-Chancellor is monitored by objectives which are reviewed by the Remuneration 
Committee on a regular basis. 

Directors' third-party indemnity provision 
A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined in section 234 of the Companies Act 
2006 is in force for the benefit of each of the directors in respect of liabilities incurred as a result 
of their office , to the extent permitted by law. In respect of those liabilities for which directors 
may not be indemnified, the company maintained a directors' and officers' liability insurance 
policy throughout the financial year, and at the date of approval of the financial statements. 
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Disclosure of information to auditors 
Each of the directors in office confirm that, so far as they are aware, at the date of signing these 
financial statements there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are 
unaware. They also confirm that they have taken all steps they ought to have taken as directors 
in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
company 's auditors are aware of that information. 

Independent auditors 
Scrutton Bland LLP was appointed as auditor in 2020. 

Other matters 
The Directors have had regard to the need to foster the University's business relationships with 
suppliers, customers and others as set out in the strategic report and statement for public 
benefit. Reporting on greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption and energy efficiency is 
dealt with on pages 17 and 18 of these financial statements. 

Statement of the Board of Directors responsibilities in respect of the Annual report and 
the financial statements 
The Board of Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report and the financial 
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Office for Students' terms and conditions 
of funding for higher education institutions and Research England's terms and conditions of 
grant and applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 
Under that law they have elected to prepare the University financial statements in accordance 
with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) , 
including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland. The terms and conditions of funding further require the financial statements to be 
prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice -Accounting for Further 
and Higher Education, in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts Direction issued 
by the Office for Students. 

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University and of their 
income and expenditure, gains and losses and changes in reseNes for that period. In preparing 
the University's financial statements , the directors are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 

• assess the University's ability to continue as a going concern , disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern ; and 

• use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the 
University or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are 
sufficient to show and explain the University's transactions and disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the University and enable them to ensure that its 
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such 
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general 
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of 
the University and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
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The Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that: 

• funds from whatever source administered by the University for specific purposes have been 
properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation; 

• funds provided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation (including Research 
England}, the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education have 
been applied in accordance with the terms and conditions attached to them; 

• ensuring that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to 
safeguard public funds and funds from other sources; and 

• securing the economical , efficient and effective management of the University's resources 
and expenditure. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and 
financial information included on the University's website. Legislation in the UK governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 

Availability of financial statements on the web site 
The annual financial statements are available on the University of Suffolk website. The 
maintenance and integrity of the University website is the responsibility of the Board. The work 
carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, 
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial 
statements since they were initially presented on the web site. Legislation in the United 
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Approved by the Board and signed by its order by 

Mr T J Greenacre 
Company Secretary 
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The following statement is given to assist readers of the financial statements in gaining an 
understanding of the governance structures of the University and to summarise the institution 's 
arrangements for implementation of best practice for internal control and risk management. 
This statement covers the full financial year and up to the date of approval of the financial 
statements. 

The University of Suffolk is a company limited by guarantee. The primary documents of 
governance are the company's Articles of Association, and the principal statutory body of the 
University is its Board of Directors ("the Board"). All members of the Board are directors of the 
company under the Companies Act 2006 and are also members of the company . The Articles 
of Association require that at least half of the Board shall be independent directors and provide 
for University staff and student representation on the Board . 

Principles and ethos of the University 
The University of Suffolk is committed to the highest standards of governance, which is vital to 
achieving the organisation's vision and strategic objectives. Throughout its governance and 
management, the institution subscribes to the Nolan principles which are the basis for the 
ethical standards expected in public life. The University also wholeheartedly subscribes to the 
values and primary elements of the 'Higher Education Code of Governance' (the Code) which 
was published in September 2020. 

Board structure 
The Board normally meets four times a year and has three sub-committees: Nominations 
Committee; Remuneration Committee; and Audit and Risk Committee. The actual number of 
meetings of the board during the year under review was eight. Each of the sub-committees is 
formally constituted with written terms of reference, specified membership and delegated 
powers. Day to day management of the University is the responsibility of the Executive 
Committee which is headed by the Vice-Chancellor and Chief Executive Officer. The Vice
Chancellor and Chief Executive Officer is an ex-officio director of the company. 

The Nominations Committee makes recommendations for the appointment of directors and 
external , co-opted members of the Board's sub committees (who are not directors of the 
company) . The committee met four times during the year and oversaw the process for the 
appointment of a new chair of the board with effect from 1 August 2021 . 

The Remuneration Committee determines the annual remuneration and conditions of senior 
staff, including the Vice-Chancellor and Chief Executive Officer. The Remuneration Committee 
is also responsible for recommending general changes in pay and conditions to the Board. The 
committee did not meet during the year. 

The Audit and Risk Committee met five times during the year. Its main duties include: 
• To prepare an annual report for submission to the Board on the work of the Audit and 

Risk Committee, including an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control , the 
arrangements in place to promote economy, efficiency and effectiveness and value for 
money and assurances over the processes for risk management and data quality. 

• To advise the Board on risk management through the review of the risk register and 
other activities. 

• To advise the Board on its conclusions on whether adequate arrangements are in place 
to promote value for money initiatives. 

• To review the effectiveness of financial and other internal control systems, including 
oversight of the institution's policy on fraud and irregularity and anti-bribery . 

• To monitor the effectiveness of internal and external audit, and co-ordinate the activity 
of the internal and external auditors. 

• To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the External Auditor 
and, if necessary, on their dismissal. 

• To approve the External Auditor's report on the nature and scope of the audit and to 
receive and consider the External Auditor's management letter in connection with the 
audit of the Financial Statements and the management response. 
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• To advise on the appointment of the Internal Auditor and, if necessary, on their 
dismissal. 

• To approve the internal audit programme with reference to the risk register, and to 
review the work of the Internal Auditor and receive an annual report prepared by the 
Internal Auditor. 

Academic authority for the University is overseen by the Senate. The Senate is responsible for 
the promotion of academic work both in teaching and research, for the regulation of educational 
arrangements and for the maintenance of academic discipline. 

Statement of internal control 
The Board is responsible for the company's system of internal control and for reviewing its 
effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to 
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. 

As part of the process for identifying, evaluating and managing the University's significant risks, 
a comprehensive review of the risk register is undertaken by the Audit and Risk Committee and 
the Executive Committee, and the outcomes reported to the Board for review and action where 
necessary. 

The key elements of the University's system of internal control , which is designed to discharge 
the responsibilities in relation to business, operational , compliance and financial risks , include 
the following : 

• clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and authority delegated to, heads of 
academic departments and professional services; 

• a short and medium term planning process, supplemented by detailed annual 
income, expenditure and capital budgets; 

• regular reviews of key performance indicators and reviews of financial performance 
involving variance reporting and updates of financial outturns; 

• integration of risk management into normal business processes with alignment to 
the strategic objectives of the institution; 

• defined and formalised requirements for the approval and control of expenditure, 
with investment decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to 
appraisal and review according to approval levels set by the Board; 

• a professional internal audit team whose annual programme is approved by the 
Audit and Risk Committee; 

• a risk register which is scored according to the likelihood and impact of the key risks, 
which are informed by the strategic plan and also linked to the internal audit planning 
process. 

As part of the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls, plans are put in 
place to address any weaknesses identified and ensure continuous improvement of the system 
of internal controls as necessary. The effectiveness of the system of internal controls is 
reviewed at least annually by the Audit and Risk Committee, informed by the work of the internal 
auditor. 
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Proper allocation of funds 

The directors of the Board have taken reasonable steps to: 
• ensure that funds originating from the Office for Students are used only for the 

purposes for which they have been given and in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of funding between the Office for Students and institutions and any other 
conditions that the OfS may prescribe from time to time; 

• ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to 
safeguard public funds and funds from other sources; 

• safeguard the assets of the University and to prevent and detect fraud and other 
irregularities; and 

• secure the economic, efficient, and effective management of the University 's 
resources and expenditure. 

Going concern 
The directors have prepared projections in support of the company's cash requirements in 
addition to its on-going compliance with the terms of its bank facilities. The directors have given 
this matter careful consideration and, cognisant of the above matters , the Board is satisfied that 
the University has adequate resources to continue in operation for at least twelve months from 
the date of this report. For this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements. 

Approved by the Board and signed by its order by 

~~ 
Mr T J Greenacre 
Company Secretary 
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Statement of public benefit 

The University of Suffolk is a company limited by guarantee and is an exempt charity under the 
terms of the Charities Act 2011 . 

In setting and reviewing the University's objectives and activities, the Board has had due regard 
to the Charity Commission's guidance on the reporting of public benefit and particularly to its 
supplementary public benefit guidance on the advancement of education . This statement 
recognises the reporting requirements introduced by the Office for Students as the principal 
regulator of English higher education institutions under the Charities Act 2011. 

Vision and Mission 
The University's strategy, vision and mission is laid out in its publication 'Transforming Lives 
and Our Region' . The University's mission is to transform lives and its region through education, 
training , research, business and community engagement. 

The company's objects include the following: 
• the advancement of education, learning and research for the public benefit; 
• to collaborate with other institutions in advancing, providing and delivering education 

and to contribute to the growth and change of learning needs in Suffolk and beyond 
including, without limitation, by drawing together academic, technological, pedagogic 
and professional expertise; 

• to promote academic and applied research and all other types of research, teaching, 
scholarship and knowledge transfer; 

• to support, aid and assist in any way the activities of other charitable institutions 
concerned with the advancement of education, learning and research for the public 
benefit. 

Of the 12 specific categories of charitable purposes set out in the Charities Act 2011, the 
University makes a significant contribution in the following areas: 

• the advancement of education 
• the advancement of health or the saving of lives 
• the advancement of citizenship or community development 
• the advancement of the arts , culture, heritage or science 

• the advancement of human rights, conflict resolution or reconciliation or the promotion 
of religious or racial harmony or equality and diversity 

• the advancement of environmental protection or improvement 

Examples of the charitable nature of the University's activities are set out below. 
• The University undertakes teaching and research under a wide range of academic 

subject areas. 
• The University freely produces reports and publishes research findings in a range of 

different formats which are widely disseminated and accessible by the general public; 
• Graduates of the University subsequently work in the NHS, government, charities and 

other not for profit organisations, continuing to the broad charitable aims supported by 
the University. 

• The Suffolk Institute for Social and Economic Research (SISER), provides an 
innovative approach to interdisciplinary research and a high quality evaluation service 
on domestic abuse; sexual abuse; on line risk; social migration; youth justice and youth 
unemployment, to inform real-world public policy. 

• The University, working with partners, has played a lead role in establishing the UK's 
first Integrated Care Academy (ICA) on its campus . Working with a range of NHS and 
local authority partners, the ICA is a centre of excellence for integrated health and 
social care practices, aiming to deliver positive benefits to its local communities across 
Suffolk and North East Essex. 
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The University actively pursues its charitable objectives by means of a variety of direct and 
indirect routes . The University's direct beneficiaries are undergraduate and postgraduate 
students and those who benefit from the research undertaken at the University. 

The University is a major supplier of graduate skills for its local healthcare providers, and its 
£13m investment in a new home for the School of Health and Sports Sciences will provide two 
floors of brand-new clinical simulation facilities, a new sports and exercise facility , 
physiotherapy simulation laboratories, a working radiography imaging suite, therapeutic 
radiotherapy areas, and working clinics for counselling and psychotherapy, physiotherapy and 
sports therapy. The new facility will help to deliver a highly skilled graduate workforce - each 
year providing in excess of 200 qualified nurses, 20 physiotherapists, and 50 paramedics 
alongside 36 social workers, and psychotherapists. 

Values 
The values of the University of Suffolk are set out below. 

• Transformational: We believe in the power of education to deliver positive change for 
the individuals and communities we work with . 

• Inclusive: We are a community built on respect, fairness and compassion . We debate 
our differences sensitively and celebrate the strength and creativity that a diverse 
community gives us. 

• Creative: We dare to challenge established beliefs, generate new ideas and strive to 
change the communities we serve. We are innovative in finding new ways and solutions 
to advance the boundaries of knowledge and address real -life issues. 

• Empowering: We inspire our students and staff to be the best they can be and 
support them to realise their potential and goals. 

• Collaborative: We thrive through inclusive, trusting and supportive relationships which 
builds a sense of commun ity and mutual responsibility and helps to achieve our shared 
goals. 

• Professionalism and service: We strive to deliver the highest standards of service and 
scholarship, both internally between academics and professional services colleagues, 
and externally between all University staff. 

Access and participation 
In order to demonstrate that the aims and activities of the University are for the public benefit , 
such benefits must be for the general public, or at least a wide and appropriately defined section 
of the public. It is important that the opportunity to benefit is not unreasonably restricted given 
the nature of the University's aims and the resources it has available. One such potential 
restriction is the ability to pay any fees charged by the University. In common with other similar 
organisations, the University does recover from students a contribution to the cost of their tuition , 
currently capped at the level set by government. In order to ensure that such fees do not 
unreasonably restrict access to the benefits of a university education, the government provides 
tuition loans to cover the upfront costs which are only repayable if students subsequently earn 
above a minimum level of income in future years . In addition , universities which charge students 
in this way must agree to safeguard and promote fair access to higher education . This is 
assessed by the Office for Students through its approval of each institutions' Access and 
Participation Plan (APP). The University of Suffolk has received approval for its latest APP 
which covers the period 2020/21 to 2024/25. 

Demonstrating public benefit, however, extends far beyond the question of fees , and the 
University is particularly aware of the need to ensure that people from all backgrounds can 
participate in , and benefit from its activities. Not everyone has the same level of educational 
opportunity, support or information available to enable them to secure university education. For 
this reason the University has put in place a range of activities designed to widen participation 
to students that might not otherwise benefit. 
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To that end the University of Suffolk aims to be a beacon of excellence in attracting students 
from Suffolk and beyond, helping to reverse the net export of graduates and the low post-16 
participation rate which has adversely affected Suffolk for many years. Widening participation 
continues to be central to the mission of the University of Suffolk, and the profile of its student 
population reflects this. The University has a high proportion of under-represented students, 
and there is a broad mix of students across the undergraduate student body. The University 
has ambitious targets for each of the four categories identified in its APP: Access Investment; 
Financial Support; Disability Support; and Research and Evaluation. 

Schools and Colleges Liaison 
The student recruitment team of the University works with schools and colleges to inform 
students about the higher education opportunities available to them; this includes delivery of 
presentations and workshops, and individual student advice. A range of on-campus visits to the 
University as well as residential visits over the summer are also held to give potential applicants 
a 'taste' of university life. 

We recognise that information, advice and guidance (IAG) plays a key role in supporting and 
informing the choices of young people and mature students and we will continue to focus on 
delivering excellent IAG support across all of our activities. We will continue to work in a 
structured way with schools and colleges with low progression rates to higher education, as 
well as with communities with low participation rates including mature and part-time students. 

National Network for Collaborative Outreach scheme (NNCO) 
The NNCO delivers a nationally co-ordinated approach to working with schools , universities 
and colleges to help people access higher education. Local and regional providers of higher 
education have come together to form the networks, ensuring comprehensive coverage across 
England. 

Thirty-five local networks cover the whole of England. Each network appoints a single point of 
contact to help teachers and advisers find out about higher education outreach activity in their 
area and to provide general advice about progression into higher education . The local networks 
host websites with information about outreach activity, and signpost other information to support 
schools and colleges as they prepare their students for higher education. The networks are 
funded by the Department for Education and managed by the Office for Students. 

The University of Suffolk is a partner in the Network for East Anglian Collaborative Outreach 
(neaco) alongside the University of Cambridge, Anglia Ruskin University, University of East 
Anglia and Norwich University of the Arts. NEACO places a network of Higher Education 
Champions (HECs) into target schools across Suffolk, Norfolk, Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough, and ten HECs are based in Suffolk. The University of Suffolk's outreach activity 
work alongside the NEACO project to ensure that young people who are not NEACO priority 
students continue to receive aspiration-raising activity , particularly where they are in one of the 
University's target groups. 

Student bursaries 
The University of Suffolk safeguards and promotes fair access to all of its OfS-regulated full
time and part-time undergraduate programmes, recognising the need to support students 
throughout the whole student lifecycle. The University's Access and Participation Plan includes 
a package of financial and non-financial support measures to support access, student success, 
and progression. The accessibility to students of bursaries to address financial hardship and 
digital poverty has recently been widened. 

Value for money 
The Board has an explicit duty imposed by the terms and conditions of funding with the OfS to 
ensure the proper use and allocation of funding received and the delivery of value for money. 
The institution's Audit & Risk Committee is presented with an annual report on value for money 
by the Executive Committee to assist it in reaching its conclusions on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the University's arrangements. 
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The University seeks to deliver value for money across all of its activities and to all of its 
stakeholders. A particularly high level of focus is placed upon the services delivered to students 
and their overall experience whilst at the University. Ensuring value for money is received by 
students is a high priority for the University. The quality of learning and teaching and student 
support is a key component of the drive to deliver high levels of student satisfaction and 
graduate employability. This is reflected in the key performance indicators monitored by the 
Board . 

Remuneration Policy 
In setting the remuneration policy of the institution the Board is cognisant of the guidance issued 
by the OfS relating to the consideration of the public interest in the reward and payment of staff. 

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking 
In accordance with the Modern Slavery Act , we have published a statement on our website in 
relation to Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking to accompany our financial statements. The 
University of Suffolk has a zero-tolerance approach to modern slavery and is committed to 
improving our practices to combat slavery and human trafficking . 

Community engagement 
The University of Suffolk has at the heart of its mission a responsibility to be a model for a new 
type of university - embedded, influential and a focus of societal and economic change in the 
communities it serves. Its network is reaching out to communities locally , nationally and across 
the globe, connecting with people and organisations to create relationships, collaborations and 
partnerships that can make a real difference. 

The University's 'Transforming Lives and Our Region ' states: To fulfil its mission the institution 
will be recognised as an empowering force for individual and community growth and 
development. It will be recognised for the major contribution it makes to the health and wellbeing 
of the people in its region and acknowledged for lasting social and sustainable economic 
transformation . Its students will come from diverse backgrounds and, as part of a connected 
community, its staff and students will carry the University's values of inclusiveness and 
tolerance. 

The University promotes research and scholarship across the institution, informing its learning 
and teaching and enterprise initiatives. It also promotes and disseminates the impact of its 
research externally through effective public engagement with business, public bodies and local 
communities. 

Sustainability policy 
The University of Suffolk takes a strategic approach to sustainable development across all of 
it's operations and activities. Meeting our sustainable development objectives is crucial to both 
students , staff and the wider local community. Within this community, we share a vital academic 
and economic position across the region coupled with an accountability to ensure the protection 
of the condition of our immediate and global environment through the pursuit of excellent in 
social and corporate responsible using the framework of the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals. 

We are committed to Sustainability throughout all our activities, from the operation and 
management of our Campuses, through to teaching and learning, research and knowledge 
exchange. Further realised through the external leadership work we conduct through the 
University's Suffolk Sustainability Institute, in collaboration with our partnership organisations. 

As such the University requires its activities to meet or exceed the conformance requirements 
of applicable environmental regulations, standards and guidelines. Rising to this challenge we 
work to: 

• Ensure compliance with all relevant regulations and legislation, 
• Ensure sustainability is understood by staff, students and stakeholders and is further 

embedded within all aspects of University strategy, planning and activities, 
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• Reduce carbon and greenhouse gas emissions through the reduction in energy use in 
line with the University of Suffolk Carbon Management Strategy with a view to achieving 
Scope 1 and 2 Net Zero and ensure full application of the waste management hierarchy 
to increase recycling rates and pursue zero waste to landfill , 

• Ensure Campus development and maintenance identifies minimum standards for 
sustainability in materials procurement and operational use, with an emphasis on water 
and energy efficiency and the circular economy, 

• Ensure that biodiversity opportunities are identified, implemented and enhanced when 
considering land use, development and construction practices as laid out in the 
Biodiversity Plan 

• Ensure that sustainable travel and transport is supported and facilitated for both staff 
and students as laid out in the Travel Plan 

The University can confirm that during 2020-21 : 

• Annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of Carbon Dioxide equivalent from the 
combustion of gas was 191 .84 tCO2e and the purchase of gas was £138,533 

• Annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of Carbon Dioxide equivalent from the use of 
electricity was 406.24 tCO2e and the purchase of electricity was £390,121 

• Total carbon for scope 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent was 
598.08 tCO2e 

• The annual quantity of kWh for the combustion of gas during 2020-21 was 960,375 
kWh and the energy consumed from electricity was 2,155,733 kWh. Of which 
47,055kWh were produced through on-site renewable generation 

Following on from the successful completion the University of Suffolk's carbon target to reduce 
carbon by 43% by 2020 against the 2010 baseline, the University is now in the process of 
producing a new Carbon Strategy to achieve Carbon net zero for scope 1 and 2 emissions. The 
new carbon policy to 2030 will be ratified by the beginning of 2022. 

As with 2019-20, partial campus closure due to Covid 19 over the reporting year has led to a 
favorable performance. With a 77% reduction in carbon emissions against the 2010 basel ine, 
it is difficult to fully evaluate the impact of energy efficiency measures undertaken during this 
reporting year. However, it is considered that infrastructure improvements and the installation 
of additional solar PV would place a true reduction at a potential 55% reduction against the 
baseline. 

A full report showing sustainability performance, operational activities and engagement 
programs for 2020-21 can be found on our website 

Approved by the Board and signed by its order by 

Mr T J Greenacre 
Company Secretary 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNIVERSITY OF SUFFOLK LTD 

OPINION 
We have audited the financial statements of University of Suffolk Ltd ("the University") for the 
year ended 30 July 2021 which comprise the Statement of comprehensive income and 
expenditure, Statement of financial position , Statement of cash flow and Statement of changes 
in reserves, and related notes, including the Statement of accounting policies. 

In our opinion , in all material respects: 

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the University's affairs 
as at 31 July 2021 , and of the University's income and expenditure, gains and losses 
and changes in reserves, and of the cash flows , for the year then ended; 

• the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK 
accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland, and with the Statement of Recommended Practice 
-Accounting for Further and Higher Education; 

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2006. 

• funds from whatever source administered by the University for specific purposes have 
been properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with rel~vant 
legislation; 

• funds provided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation (including 
Research England), the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for 
Education have been applied in accordance with the terms and conditions attached to 
them; 

• the requirements of the Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students have been 
met. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the University in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements . We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively , may cast 
significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 
at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going 
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report . 

OTHER INFORMATION 
The other information comprises the Strategic report, Directors' report, Statement of corporate 
governance and internal control Statement of public benefit. The directors are responsible for 
the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we 
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to 
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard . 

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 
In our opinion , based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors ' report for the financial 
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements; and 

• the Strategic report and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with 
applicable legal requirements. 
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the University and its environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report 
of directors' report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies 
Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit 
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 
or 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

We also have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Office 
for Students accounts direction requires us to report, where: 

• the University 's grant and fee income, as disclosed in the note to the accounts has 
been materially misstated; or 

the University's expenditure on access and participation activities for the year has been 
materially misstated. 
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS 
As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set out on pages 9 & 10 the 
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
University's ability to continue as a going concern , disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the University or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures 
are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a 
material effect on the financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, 
through discussion with the directors (as required by auditing standards) , inspection of the 
company's regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the directors the policies 
and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We communicated identified 
laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non
compliance throughout the audit. 

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies 
considerably. 

Firstly, the University is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial 
statements including financial reporting legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed the 
extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related 
financial statement items. 

Secondly, the University is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences 
of noncompliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial 
statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following 
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: compliance with the requirements of the 
Office for Students, Ofsted , UK Border Agency requirements and UK Visas and Immigration 
rules, health and safety, building regulations, corporate governance including safeguarding and 
wellbeing , human rights and employment law, anti-bribery and corruption , and GDPR. Auditing 
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and 
regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and 
legal correspondence, if any. 
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Audit procedures undertaken in response to the potential risks relating to irregularities (which 
include fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations) comprised of: enquiries of 
management and those charged with governance as to whether the University complies with 
such regulations ; enquiries of management and those charged with governance concerning 
any actual or potential litigation or claims, inspection of any relevant legal documentation, 
review of board minutes, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and the performance of 
analytical review to identify any unexpected movements in account balances which may be 
indicative of fraud . 

No instances of material non-compliance were identified. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed 
non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the 
financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Irregularities that result from 
fraud might be inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that result from error. As 
explained above, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements may not be detected, 
even though the audit has been planned and performed in accordance with ISAs (UK). 

A further description of our respons ibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 
the Financial Reporting Council's website at: https://www.frc .orq .uk/auditorsresponsibilities. 
This description forms part of our auditor's report. 

USE OF OUR REPORT 
This report is made solely to the University's directors, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the University and its Directors as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report , or for the opinions we have formed. 

Mr Timothy O'Connor (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

For and on behalf of: 

Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO4 9YQ 

Date: 2 s/11 /2.. 1 
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Income 

Tuition fees and education contracts 

Funding body grants 

Research grants and contracts 

Other income 

Investment income 

Total income before endowments and donations 

Donations and endowments 

Total income 

Expenditure 

Staff Costs - excluding Movement on USS provision 

Staff Costs - Movement on USS provision b 

Other operating expenses 

Depreciation 

Interest and other finance costs 

Total expenditure 

Surplus before other gains, losses and share of operating surplus / (deficit) of 
joint ventures 

Share of operating surplus/(deficit) in associate 

Surplus for the year• 

Actuarial (loss) in respect of pension schemes 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Represented by: 

Endowment comprehensive expenditure for the year 

Restricted comprehensive income I (expenditure) for the year 

Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year 

Isolated effect of USS Pension Provision Movement 

• Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 

b Movement on USS provision 
Surplus for the year with USS provision movement excluded 

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities. 

Notes 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

7 

9 

12 

8 

9a 

13 

The accompanying notes and policies on pages 28 to 45 form part of these financial statements . 

As restated 

2021 2020 
£'000 £'000 

88,139 63,802 

5,031 3,502 

283 318 

3,946 3,346 

7 59 

97,406 71,027 

45 27 

97,451 71,054 

24,318 22 ,571 

184 (7 ,137) 

57,357 36,188 

3,689 3,488 

1,175 1,399 

86,723 56,509 

10,728 14,545 

10,728 14,545 

(198) (1 ,778) 

10,530 12,767 

(10) (12) 

24 (15) 

10,516 12,794 

10,530 12,767 

2021 2020 
£'000 £'000 

10,728 14,545 
184 (7,137) 

10,912 7,408 
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Non-current assets 

Tangible fixed assets 

Investment in associate 

Current assets 

Trade and other receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Less: Creditors: amounts falling 

due within one year 

Net current assets 

Total assets less current liabilities 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 

Provisions 

Universities Superannuation Scheme provision 

Enhanced Pension provision 

Local Government Pension Scheme provision 

Total net assets 

Restricted Reserves 

Income and expenditure reserve - endowment reserve 

Income and expenditure reserve - restricted reserve 

Unrestricted Reserves 

Income and expenditure reserve - unrestricted 

Total Reserves 

Notes 

12 

13 

10 

17 

11 

14 

15 

15 

22 

16 

16 

2021 
£'000 

72 ,392 

32 ,537 

38,738 

71 ,275 

(44,408) 

26 ,867 

99,259 

(52 ,018) 

(7,767) 

(719) 

(6,205) 

32,550 

69 

57 

32,424 

32,550 

32,550 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf by: 

Chair of Board of Directors 

Date: z 7> }u I 2..\ 

Registered Number: 05078498 

Professor H Langton 

Vice-Chancellor 

The accompanying notes and policies on pages 28 to 45 form part of these financial statements . 

2020 
£'000 

66,872 

24 ,766 

21 ,903 

46,669 

(29 ,538) 

17,131 

84,003 

(47 ,868) 

(7,527) 

(789) 

(5 ,799) 

22,020 

79 

33 

21 ,908 

22,020 

22,020 
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University of Suffolk Ltd 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year ended 31 July 2021 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Surplus for the year 

Adjustments 

Depreciation 

Increase in debtors 

Increase in creditors 
Increase/ (Decrease) in other provisions 

Adjustment for investing or financing activities 

Investment income 

Interest payable 

Capital grant income 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Capital grant receipts 

Payments made to acquire fixed assets 

Net cash outflow from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Interest paid 

Interest received 

Repayments of amounts borrowed 

Net cash outflow from financing activities 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Notes 

12 

10 

11/14 

15 

5 

8 

17 

17 

The accompanying notes and policies on pages 28 to 45 form part of these financial statements. 

2021 2020 
£'000 £'000 

10,728 14,545 

3,689 3,488 

(7,770) (8,787) 

14,657 6,962 

170 (6 ,876) 

(7) (59) 

1,175 1,399 

(1,440) (1,462) 

21,202 9,210 

6,589 2,839 

(9,210) (2,861) 

(2,621) (22) 

(1 ,175) (1 ,399) 

7 59 

(578) (545) 

(1,746) (1,885) 

16,835 7,303 

21,903 14,600 

38,738 21 ,903 
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University of Suffolk Ltd 
Statement of Changes in Reserves 
Year ended 31 July 2021 

Note 

Balance at 1 August 2019 

Surplus/ (deficit) from the income and expenditure statement 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income/ (expenditure) for the year 

Balance at 1 August 2020 

Surplus J (deficit) from the income and expenditure statement 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income/ (expenditure) for the year 

Balance at 31 July 2021 

Income and expenditure account 

Endowment Restricted Unrestricted 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

91 48 9,1 14 

(12) (15) 14,572 

(1,778) 

(12) (15) 12,794 

79 33 21,908 

(10) 24 10,714 

(198) 

(10) 24 10,516 

69 57 32,424 

The accompanying notes and policies on pages 28 to 45 form part of these financial statements. 

Total 

£'000 

9,253 

14,545 

(1 ,778) 

12,767 

22,020 

10,728 

(198) 

10,530 

32,550 
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University of Suffolk Ltd 

Statement of accounting policies for the year ended 31 July 2021 

Basis of preparation 
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with the 
historical cost convention and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice 
(SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 and FRS 102 The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). The 
University of Suffolk Ltd ("the University" or "the company") is a company domiciled in the UK. 
The currency used in the financial statements is pound sterling and the figures have been 
rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated. The University is a public benefit 
entity and therefore has applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS102. 

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. On first time adoption of 
FRS102, the company has not retrospectively changed its accounting under old UK GAAP for 
accounting estimates. 

Certain comparatives have been restated to make their treatment consistent with that adopted 
in the current year 

Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have 
a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material 
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 24. 

Format of financial statements 
The financial statements contain information about the University of Suffolk Ltd as an 
individual company and do not include those of the students' union, as it is a separate entity 
in which the company has no financial interest, no control or significant influence over policy 
decisions. The financial statements have been prepared to conform with the Companies Act 
2006, the Office for Students (OFS) Accounts direction to higher education institutions, and 
also with the Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice (SORP): Accounting for 
Further and Higher Education 2019, the use of which has been mandated by the terms of the 
funding arrangements in place between the University of Suffolk, University of East Anglia, 
University of Essex and the Office for Students. 

Going concern 
The directors have prepared projections in support of the company's cash requirements in 
addition to its on-going compliance with the terms of its bank facilities . The financial position 
of the company is set out in the strategic report. 

The directors have given this matter careful consideration and the Board is satisfied that the 
University has adequate resources to continue in operation for at least twelve months from 
the date of this report. For this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in 
the preparation of the financial statements . 

Income recognition 
Grant funding including funding council block grant, research grants from government sources, 
and grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised as 
income when the University is entitled to the income and performance related conditions have 
been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is 
recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income 
as the conditions are met. 

Tuition fees and income from education contracts are stated gross and credited to the income 
and expenditure account over the period in which students are studying. Bursaries are 
accounted for gross as expenditure and not deducted from income. 

Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset 
to which the grant relates . Other capital grants are recognised in income when the University 
is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met. 
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University of Suffolk Ltd 

Statement of accounting policies for the year ended 31 July 2021 

Investment income is credited to the income and expenditure account on a receivable basis. 

Non-exchange transactions without performance related conditions are donations and 
endowments. Donations and endowments with donor imposed restrictions are recogn ised in 
income when the University is entitled to the funds. Income is retained within the restricted 
reserve until such time that it is utilised in line with such restrictions at which point the income 
is released to general reserves through a reserve transfer. 

Donations with no restrictions are recognised in income when the University is entitled to the 
funds. 

Investment income and appreciation of endowments is recorded in income in the year in which 
it arises and as either restricted or unrestricted income according to the terms other restriction 
applied to the individual endowment fund. 

There are four main types of donations and endowments identified within reserves: 

1. Restricted donations - the donor has specified that the donation must be used for a 
particular objective. 

2. Unrestricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified that the fund is to be 
permanently invested to generate an income stream for the general benefit of the 
University. 

3. Restricted expendable endowments - the donor has specified a particular objective 
other than the purchase or construction of tangible fixed assets , and the University 
has the power to use the capital. 

4. Restricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified that the fund is to be 
permanently invested to generate an income stream to be applied to a particular 
objective. 

Gifts in kind, including donated tangible fixed assets 
Gifts in kind are reflected in 'other income' or 'deferred capital grants' as appropriate. 

Agency arrangements 
Funds that the University receives and disburses as a paying agent on behalf of a funding 
body are excluded from the income and expenditure of the University where it is exposed to 
minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic benefit related to the transaction. Disclosures in 
relation to these arrangements are included in note 21 to the financial statements. 

Long-term loans 
Loans are initially recognised _at transaction price including transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Taxation 
The University is an exempt charity within the meaning of schedule 3 of the Charities Act 2011 
and is considered to pass the test set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and 
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. 
Accordingly, the University is exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains 
received within categories covered by section 287 CTA 2009 and section 471 , and 478-488 
CTA 2010 or section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that 
such income or gains are applied to exclusively charitable purposes. 

The University receives no similar exemption in respect of value added tax (VAT). 
Irrecoverable value added tax on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs. Any 
irrecoverable VAT allocated to tangible fixed assets is included in their cost. 

Tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation. The 
cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost together with any incidental costs of 
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University of Suffolk Ltd 

Statement of accounting policies for the year ended 31 July 2021 

acquisition. Donated tangible fixed assets are included at deemed cost based on a valuation 
at the date of donation. 

Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of 
transition to the Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019, are measured on the 
basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that revaluation . Under first
time adoption to FRS102, the University has elected to use this fair value as deemed cost. 

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets, less their 
estimated residual value, over the expected useful economic lives of the assets in equal 
annual instalments at the following principal rates: 

Freehold buildings 

Building refurbishments 

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 

Computer equipment 

2.0% - 2.5% 

12.5% - 25% 

12.5% - 25% 

25% 

Freehold land, heritage assets , and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated. 

Where parts of a fixed asset have different estimated useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items of fixed assets. 

The depreciaton of the Tangible Fixed Assets related to The Hold are being depreciated over 
98 years. This is in line with the lease contracts under which they were created . 

Inherited fixed assets 
Assets inherited from Suffolk New College are stated in the balance sheet at their fair value 
on transfer based on depreciated replacement cost. 

Acquisition with the aid of specific grants 
Where assets are acquired with the aid of specific government grants, they are capitalised 
and depreciated. The related grants are credited to a deferred capital grant account and 
released to the income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the 
related assets. 

Repairs and maintenance 
Expenditure to ensure that a tangible fixed asset maintains its previous standard of 
performance is recognised in the income and expenditure account in the period it is incurred. 
The company has a planned maintenance programme, which is reviewed on an annual basis. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised in the financial statements when the company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is discounted to present 
value where the time value of money is material. The discount rate used reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and reflects any risks specific to the liability. 

Accounting for retirement benefits 
The company contributes to the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS) and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 
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USS 
With effect from 1 October 2016, the scheme changed from a defined benefit only pension 
scheme to a hybrid pension scheme, providing defined benefits (for all members), as well as 
defined contribution benefits. The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee
administered fund. Because of the mutual nature of the scheme, the assets are not attributed 
to individual institutions and a scheme-wide contribution rate is set. The institution is therefore 
exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions' employees and is unable to 
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and 
reasonable basis. As required by Section 28 of FRS 102 "Employee benefits", the institution 
therefore accounts for the scheme as if it were a wholly defined contribution scheme. As a 
result, the amount charged to the profit and loss account represents the contributions payable 
to the scheme. Since the institution has entered into .an agreement (the Recovery Plan) that 
determines how each employer within the scheme will fund the overall deficit, the institution 
recognises a liability for the contributions payable that arise from the agreement (to the extent 
that they relate to the deficit) and therefore an expense is recognised . 

. LGPS 
The amounts charged to the income and expenditure account are as follows. The current and 
past service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments are included as part 
of staff costs. The expected return on assets, net of the impact of the unwinding of the discount 
on the scheme's liabilities, is shown within interest payable or other finance income. Actuarial 
gains and losses, including differences between expected and actual return on assets, are 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Accounting for enhanced pension obligations 
Liabilities in respect of enhanced pension obligations are measured on an actuarial basis 
using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of 
return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the University's 
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are updated at each balance sheet date. Movements in the 
liability are recognised in the income and expenditure account in the period in which they arise. 

Employment benefits 
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised 
as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the University. Any 
unused benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the University expects 
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are 
repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

Operating Leases 
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Any lease premiums or incentives are spread over the lease term. 

Investments 
Investments in associates are carried at cost less impairment in the University's accounts. 

Reserves 
Reserves are classified as restricted or unrestricted. Restricted endowment reserves include 
balances which , through endowment to the University , are held as a permanently restricted 
fund which the University must hold in perpetuity. 

Other restricted reserves include balances where the donor has designated a specific purpose 
and therefore the University is restricted in the use of these funds . 
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Notes to the Accounts 
for the year ended 31 July 2021 

Tuition fees and education contracts 

Tuition fees 

Full-time home and EU students 

Full-time international students 

Part-time students 

Non-Credit bearing courses • 

Education contracts 

Health Education East of England 

Health and Care Professions Council 

Other contracts 

As restated 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

83,569 57,830 

514 785 

3,082 2,699 

213 34 

87,378 61,348 

539 2,167 

118 113 

104 174 

761 2,454 

88,139 63,802 

• Fee income for PY has been restated for £34k of non-credit bearing courses which was previously reported under other income. 

2 

3 

Funding body grants 

Recurrent grant 

Office for Students 

Office for Students - Additional Teaching Funding 

Office for Students - Additional Hardship Funding 

Research England 

Government agencies 

National College of Teaching and Learning 

Deferred capital grants released in the year 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Total funding body grants 

Research grants and contracts 

Other grants and contracts 

Note: Details of grant and fee income 

The source of grant and fee income, included in notes 1 to 3 is as follows : 

Grant income from the OfS - recurrent 

Office for Students - Additional Teaching Funding 

Office for Students - Additional Hardship Funding 

Grant income from the OfS - deferred capital grant release 

Grant income from other bodies 

Fee income for taught awards (exclusive of VAT) 

Fee income for research awards (exclusive of VAT) 

Fee income from non-qualifying courses (exclusive of VAT) 

Total grant and fee income 

Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

3,636 

19 

772 

5 

4,432 

77 

377 

145 

522 

5,031 

Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

283 

Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

3,636 

19 

772 

522 

365 

87,609 

95 

435 
93,453 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 

2,944 

9 

2,953 

417 

132 

549 

3,502 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 

318 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 

2,944 

549 

327 

63,431 

50 

321 

67,622 
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4 Other income 

Deferred capital grants released in the year 

Project income 

Validation income 

Rent & Car Park Income 

Furlough Scheme 

Other income* 

As restated 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31 July 2021 31 July 2020 
£'000 £'000 

918 913 

1,618 1,380 

45 21 

263 392 

20 32 

1,082 608 
3,946 3,346 

• Other income for PY has been restated for £34k of non-credit bearing courses which has now been reported under tuition fee 
income . 

5 Investment income 

Income from deposits 

6 Donations and endowments 

Unrestricted donations 

Restricted donations 

7 Staff costs 

Staff Costs: 

Salaries 

Social security costs 

Movement on USS provision 

Other pension 
Total 

Emoluments of the Vice-Chancellor: 

Salary 

The estimated money value of any other taxable benefits 

Total before payments in lieu of pension contributions 

Payments in lieu of pension contributions 
Total 

Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

7 

Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

27 

18 
45 

Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

£'000 
18,890 

1,702 

20,592 

184 

3,726 
24,502 

Year Ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

165 

1 

166 

30 
196 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 

59 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 

14 

13 
27 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 

£'000 

17,423 

1,557 

18,980 

(7,137) 

3,591 
15,434 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 

165 

166 

29 
195 
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Notes to the Accounts 
for the year ended 31 July 2021 

7 Staff costs (continued) 

The University's Remuneration Committee determines and reports to the Board on the salary of the Vice-Chancellor and other 
members of the Executive. No individual is present for a discussion which involves the determination of their own salary . The 
Committee determines that the salary of the Vice-Chancellor is appropriate to the institutional context, size, and the 
responsibilities of the role . In addition, the Committee considers the public interest in all forms of payment made to senior staff. 
The agreed salary of the Vice Chancellor allows for cost of living rises in line with national agreement on increases for the sector. 
Performance of the Vice-Chancellor is monitored by objectives which are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on a regular 
basis. 

The Vice-Chancellor's basic salary is 4.88 times the median pay of staff (2020: 4.74) , where the median pay is calculated on a 
full-time equivalent basis for the salaries paid by the University to its staff. The Vice-Chancellor's total remuneration is 5.52 times 
the median total remuneration of staff (2020: 5.56) , where the median total remuneration is calculated on a full-time equivalent 
basis for the total remuneration by the University of its staff. 

Remuneration of other higher paid staff, excluding employer's pension contributions and redundancy payments: 

£110,000 to £115,000 
£125,000 to £130,000 

No. 

1 

No. 
1 

1 

Retirement benefits are accruing to 2 directors (2020: 3) under the Universities Superannuation Scheme ("USS") . No 
remuneration was paid to any of the University's Board members for their services as a Board member. A total of £224 was paid 
to or on behalf of 1 Board members for expenses in relation to travel for attendance at meetings (2020: £2,327 for 5 Board 
members) 

Average staff numbers (headcount) by major category : No. No. 

Academic departments 

Academic services 
Administration and central services 

Premises 

295 
141 

97 
20 

553 

272 
143 

86 
19 

520 

In addition to the above employee numbers, the University employed an average of 85 casual staff during the year (2020: 84) . 

Severance payments 
During the year the University paid £98k in compensation for loss of office. This was paid to 10 employees. (2019/20: £32k to 3 
employees) . 

All severance payments including compensation for loss of office in respect of higher paid staff are approved by the Institution's 
Remuneration Committee. Amounts for compensation for loss of office and redundancy for all other staff are approved by 
Institution management in accordance with delegated authority . 

Key management personnel 
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning , directing and controlling the 
activities of the University. Key management personnel at the University of Suffolk are members of the Executive Committee and 
remunerated members of the Board . Compensation consists of salary and any benefits if applicable, excluding any employer's 
pension contribution ; the amount disclosed below is included within staff costs. 
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for the year ended 31 July 2021 

7 Staff costs (continued) 

Key management personnel compensation 

Access and Participation 

Access Investment 

Financial Support 

Disability Support (excluding expenditure included in the two categories above) 

Research and Evaluation 

8 Interest and other finance costs 

9a 

Loan interest 

Net charge on pension schemes 

Analysis of total expenditure by activity 

Staff Depree-

costs iation 

£'000 £'000 

Academic departments 14,415 204 

Academic services 4,731 

Administration and central services 4,368 570 

Premises 700 2,915 

USS provision 184 

Other 104 
Year ended 31 July 2021 24,502 3,689 

Year ended 31 July 2020 15,434 3,488 

Other operating expenses include: 

External Auditors Fees 

External auditors remuneration in respect of audit services 

External auditors remuneration in respect of non-audit services 

Operating lease rentals 
Other 

Other 

operating 

expenses 

£'000 

45,740 

2,514 

3,833 

2,647 

2,623 
57,357 

36,188 

Interest and 

other finance 

costs 

£'000 

1,027 

56 

92 

1,175 

1,399 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

666 690 

Year Ended Year Ended 

31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

254 261 

161 146 

201 54 

616 461 

Year ended Year ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

1,027 1,067 

148 332 

1,175 1,399 

Year ended Year ended 

31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

Total Total 

£'000 £'000 

60,359 41,051 

7,245 6,960 

8,771 7,223 

7,289 7,154 

240 (6,902) 

2,819 1,023 
86,723 56,509 

56,509 

Year ended Year ended 

31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

48 47 

3 

43 43 
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9b Access and Participation 

Access Investment (i) 

Financial Support 

Disability Support (i) 

Research and Evaluation (i) 

Year ended 
31 July 2021 

£'000 

1,602 

963 

227 

220 

3,012 

Year ended 

31 July 2020 

£'000 

1,129 

619 

174 

54 

1,976 

(i) £616k of these costs are already included in the overall staff costs figures included in the financial statements, see note 7 

The access and participation plans can be found on the University website at the following address: 

https://www.uos.ac.uk/content/widening-participation 

Year ended Year ended 

10 Trade and other receivables 31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

11 

Trade receivables 

Prepayments and accrued income 

Amounts due from related parties 

£'000 

30,556 

1,977 

4 

32,537 

£'000 

22,994 

1,769 

3 

24 ,766 

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand (see note 23 to the financial 
statements for further details) . 

Year ended 

Creditors : amounts falling due within one year 31 July 2021 

£'000 

Secured loans (note 14) 605 

Trade payables 875 

Capital creditors 1,453 

Amounts due to related parties 64 

Social security and other taxation payable 601 

Accruals and deferred income 37,956 

Other payables 524 

Deferred capital grants 2,330 

44,408 

Deferred income 
Included within accruals and deferred income are the following items of income which have been deferred until 
specific performance related conditions have been met. 

Research grants received on account • 

Other income • 

• Prior Year numbers have been restated . 

Year ended 

31 July 2021 

£'000 

389 

3,310 

3,699 

Year ended 

31 July 2020 

£'000 

578 

753 

61 

34 

433 

25,747 

508 

1,424 

29,538 

Year ended 

31 July 2020 

£'000 

118 

1,956 

2,074 
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12 Fixed Assets 

Fixtures, Assets in the 
Freehold Land Fittings and Course of 
and Buildings Equipment Construction Heritage assets Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost 

At 1 August 2020 74,794 13,382 3,416 239 91,831 

Additions 772 596 7,841 9,209 

Transfers 3,626 118 (3,744) 

At 31 July 2021 79,192 14,096 7,513 239 101,040 

Depreciation 

At 1 August 2020 13,220 11 ,739 24,959 

Charge for the year 2,915 774 3,689 

At 31 July 2021 16,135 12,513 28,648 

Net book value 

At 31 July 2021 63,057 1,583 7,513 239 72,392 

At 31 July 2020 61 ,574 1,643 3,416 239 66,872 

At 31 July 2021 , freehold land and buildings included £12.6m (2020 - £12.6m) in respect of freehold land that is not depreciated. 

The Hold 

Included within freehold land and buildings is land upon which The Hold has been constructed . The land has been leased to Suffolk 
County Council for a period to 2117 at a peppercorn rental , in exchange for a sub-lease for the same period of part of the building 
back to the University, also at a peppercorn rental. There is a right to renew these leases at the end of the lease term. 

Heritage assets 
The heritage asset relates to an art installation commissioned and installed by the University in 2011/12. The total cost of £239k has 
been capitalised and funded by £90k of grant funding. The asset is not depreciated. 

13 Investment in associate 

14 

The University holds 49 £1 shares in Eastern HE Cost Sharing Limited ("EHCS") , a subsidiary of University of Essex. The 
University has a contract with EHCS to provide internal audit services and has been doing so with effect from the 2015/16 financial 
year. 

Creditors : amounts falling due after more than one year 

Year ended Year ended 

31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

Total Total 

£'000 £'000 

Deferred Income 592 80 

Deferred capital grant 35,353 31 ,110 

Secured loans (see below) 16,073 16,678 

52,018 47,868 
Analysis of secured and unsecured loans: 

Due within one year or on demand (Note 11) 605 578 

Due between one and two years 647 605 

Due between two and five years (i) 2,161 2,048 

Due in five years or more (i) 13,265 14,025 

Due after more than one year 16,073 16,678 

Total secured loans 16,678 17,256 

Secured loans repayable by 2038 16,678 17,256 
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14 Creditors : amounts falling due after more than one year (continued) 

Included in loans are the following: 

Lender 

Barclays Bank pie 

Barclays Bank pie 

Total 

15 Provisions for liabilities 

At 1 August 2020 

Utilised in year 

(Deductions) I Additions in 2020/21 

At 31 July 2021 

USS deficit 

Amount 

borrowed 

£'000 

12,500 

8,000 

20,500 

Term 

30 years 

28 years 

Amount 

Outstanding 

£'000 

9,867 

6,811 
------

16,678 

Term Interest rate Borrower 

Remaining % 

17 years 5.09 University 

17 years 4.37 University 

Obligation to Pension 

fund deficit on enhancement Total 

USS Pension on termination Provisions 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

7,527 789 8,316 

240 (70) 170 
7,767 719 8,486 

The obligation to fund the past deficit on the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS) arises from the contractual obligation with 
the pension scheme for total payments relating to benefits arising from past performance. Management have assessed future 
employees within the USS scheme and salary payment over the period of the contracted obligation in assessing the value of this 
provision. 

Following the completion of the 2018 actuarial valuation, a new deficit recovery plan has been agreed of which more detail is given 
in note 22 . This new plan requires deficit payments of 2% of salaries from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2021 and then 
payments of 6% of salaries from 1 October 2021 to 31 March 2028. 

Pension enhancement 
The assumptions for calculating the provision for pension enhancements on termination , are as follows : 

Discount rate 

Inflation 

16 Restricted reserves 

Reserves with restrictions are as follows: 

Balances at 1 August 

Donations received 
Investment income 
Expenditure 

Total restricted comprehensive income I (expenditure) for the year 

At 31 July 

Year ended 

31 July 2021 

% 

1.6 
2.6 

Year ended 
31 July 2021 

Total 
£'000 

112 

34 
1 

(21) 

14 

126 

Year ended 

31 July 2020 

% 

1.3 

2.2 

Year ended 
31 July 2020 

Total 
£'000 

139 

15 
1 

(43) 

(27) 

112 
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16 Restricted reserves (continued) 

Analysis of restricted funds/donations by type of purpose: 

Founding supporters campaign 
Legacies 

17 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 

18 Reconciliation of net debt 

Net funds / (debt) 1 August 
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 
Secured Loans repayments 
Net funds 31 July 

Change in net funds / (debt) 

Analysis of net debt: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Borrowings: amounts falling due within one year 
Secured loans 

Borrowings: amounts falling due after more than one year 
Secured loans 

Net funds I (debt) 

At 1 August 
2020 
£'000 

21 ,903 

Year ended Year ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

Total Total 
£'000 £'000 

57 33 
69 79 

126 112 

Cash At 31 July 
Flows 2021 
£'000 £'000 

16,835 38,738 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

4,647 (3 ,201) 
16,835 7,303 

578 545 
22,060 4,647 

17,413 7,848 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

38,738 21 ,903 

605 578 

605 578 

16,073 16,678 
16,073 16,678 

22,060 4,647 
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19 Capital and reserves 

The company has no share capital as it is limited by guarantee. All members of the company undertake to contribute such a sum 
as is required , not exceeding £1 , to the assets of the company should it be wound up whilst they are a member or within one year 
after they cease to be a member. 

20 Lease obligations 

21 

22 

Total rentals payable under operating leases: 

Expensed in year 

Future minimum lease payments due: 
Not later than 1 year 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 
Later than 5 years 
Total lease payments due 

Total rentals receivable under operating leases: 

Future minimum lease payments due: 
Not later than 1 year 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 
Later than 5 years 
Total lease payments due 

Land & 
Buildings 

£'000 

199 

194 
706 
305 

1,205 

Computer 
Equipment 

£'000 

43 

43 
43 

86 

Land & 
Buildings 

£'000 

25 
53 
16 
94 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

242 239 

237 219 
749 828 
305 367 

1,291 1,414 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

£'000 £'000 

25 25 
53 77 
16 17 
94 119 

The University holds certain building space that it has leased out to third parties to provide facilities to students and staff. 

Amounts disbursed as agents Year ended Year ended 
31 July 2021 31 July 2020 

FE Initial Teacher Training Bursaries (ITT) £'000 £'000 

Funding received from BIS 77 
Brought forward from previous year 1 
Amount disbursed to students (77) 
Excess of income over expenditure 1 

Pension Schemes 

University of Suffolk employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS) and 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which is administered by Suffolk County Council. Both are defined-benefit 
schemes. 

Total employer pension contributions for the year 

USS contributions paid 

Local Government Pension Scheme contributions paid 

Local Government Pension Scheme Funding Strategy 

Year Ended 

31 July 2021 

£'000 

3,214 

286 

125 

3,625 

Year Ended 

31 July 2020 

£'000 

2,958 

425 

150 

3,533 
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22 Pension Schemes (continued) 

(i) The Universities Superannuation Scheme 
The institution participates in Universities Superannuation Scheme. The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee
administered fund . Because of the mutual nature of the scheme, the assets are not attributed to individual institutions and a 
scheme-wide contribution rate is set. The institution is therefore exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions' 
employees and is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable 
basis. As required by Section 28 of FRS 102 "Employee benefits", the institution therefore accounts for the scheme as if it were a 
defined contribution scheme. As a result , the amount charged to the profit and loss account represents the contributions payable to 
the scheme. Since the institution has entered into an agreement (the Recovery Plan) that determines how each employer within the 
scheme will fund the overall deficit, the institution recognises a liability for the contributions payable that arise from the agreement 
(to the extent that they relate to the deficit) with related expenses being recognised through the profit and loss account. 

The total cost charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, for employer contributions, is £3 ,214k (2020: 
£2 ,958k) . There was neither a prepayment nor an accrual at the end of the financial year in respect of these contributions. In 
addition to these costs , provision movements of £240k (2020: £(6,903)k) were also posted to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure following the latest complete available actuarial valuation . The disclosures below represent the position 
from the scheme's financial statements. 

The latest available complete actuarial valuation of the Retirement Income Builder is at 31 March 2018 (the valuation date}, which 
was carried out using the projected unit method. The valuation as at 31 March 2020 has not yet been completed but the latest 
information on its status can be found on a dedicated section of the USS website uss.co.uk/about-us/valuation-and-funding/2020-
valuation . This will continue to be updated as the valuation progresses. 

Since the institution cannot identify its share of USS Retirement Income Builder assets and liabilities, the following disclosures 
reflect those relevant for those assets and liabilities as a whole . 

The 2018 valuation was the fifth valuation for the scheme under the scheme-specific fund ing regime introduced by the Pensions 
Act 2004 , which requires schemes to adopt a statutory funding objective, which is to have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover 
their technical provisions. At the valuation date, the value of the assets of the scheme was £63.7 billion and the value of the 
scheme's technical provisions was £67.3 billion indicating a shortfall of £3 .6 billion and a funding ratio of 95% 

The key financial assumptions used in the 2018 valuation are described below. More detail is set out in the Statement of Funding 
Principles. 

Pension increases (CPI) 

Discount rate (forward rates) 

Term dependent rates in line with the difference between the 

Fixed Interest and Index Linked yield curves , less 1.3% p.a. 

Years 1-10: CPI+ 0.14% reducing linearly to CPI - 0.73% 

Years 11 -20: CPI+ 2.52% reducing linearly to CPI+ 1.55% by year 21 

Years 21 +: CPI + 1.55% 
The main demographic assumption used relates to the mortality assumptions. These assumptions are based on analysis of the 
scheme's experience carried out as part of the 2018 actuarial valuation . The mortality assumptions used in these figures are as 
follows : 

Mortality base tables 

Future improvements to mortality 

2018 Valuation 

Pre-retirement 
71 % of AMC00 (duration 0) for males and 112% of AFC00 (duration 0) for 
females. 

Post-retirement 
97.6% of SAPS S1 NMA "light" for males and 102.7% of RFV00 for females 

CMl_2017 with a smoothing parameter of 8.5 and a long term improvement 
rate of 1.8% pa for males and 1.6% pa for females 

The current life expectancies on retirement at age 65 are: 

Males current aged 65 (years) 
Females current aged 65 (years) 
Males current aged 45 (years) 
Females current aged 45 (years) 

2021 

24.6 
26.1 
26.6 
27.9 

2020 

24.4 
25.9 
26.3 
27.7 
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22 Pension Schemes (continued) 

(i) The Universities Superannuation Scheme (continued) 

Discount rate 

Pensionable salary growth 

(ii) Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

2021 

0.87% 

3.80% 

2020 

0.74% 

2.47% 

The LGPS is valued every three years by professionally qualified independent actuaries using the projected unit method, the rates 
of contribution payable being determined by the trustees on the advice of the actuaries. The latest available audited triennial 
actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2019 and updated to 31 July 2021 by a qualified independent actuary. 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the LGPS is a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme. In the case of the LGPS, 
the actuary of the scheme has identified the company's share of its assets and liabilities as at 31 July 2021 . The contribution 
payable by the employer was set at 19.5% of pensionable salaries from August 2007. This was increased with effect from April 
2013 to 22.5%. 

The pension scheme assets are held in a separate trustee-administered fund to meet long-term pension liabilities to past and 
present employees. The trustees of the fund are required to act in the best interests of the fund 's beneficiaries. The appointment of 
trustees to the fund is determined by the scheme's trust documentation. The trustees are responsible for setting the investment 
strategy for the scheme after consultation with professional advisers. 

The material assumptions used by the actuary for the purposes of FRS 102 at 31 July 2021 and 31 July 2020 were : 

Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 

Salary Increase Rate 

Discount Rate 

The assumed life expectations on retirement aged 65, based on standard mortality tables , are: 

Retiring today 
Males 

Females 

Retiring in 20 years 

Males 

Females 

2021 

% 

2.8 

3.5 

1.6 

2021 

Years 

22.1 

24.5 

23.2 
26.4 

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below 

2020 

% 

2.1 

2.8 

1.4 

2020 

Years 

21 .9 

24.1 

22.7 

25.6 

Approximate % increase to 
Defined Benefit Obligation 

2% 

Approximate monetary 
Change in assumptions at 31st July 2021 
0.1 % decrease in Real Discount Rate 
1 year increase in member life expectancy 
0.1 % increase in the Salary Increase Rate 
0.1 % increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 

4% 
0% 
2% 

amount (£'000) 
458 
838 
83 
367 
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22 Pension Schemes (continued) 

(ii) Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) (continued) 

The value of assets in the LGPS scheme and percentage of the total plan assets were : 

31 July 2021 

% Fund value 

of total £'000 

Equities* 65 9,590 
Bonds 25 3,688 
Properties 8 1,180 
Cash 2 295 

14,753 

31 July 2020 

% 

of total 

Fund value 

58 

27 

9 

6 

£'000 

7,177 

3,340 

1,113 

742 

12,372 

• Equities also include other alternative investments including Money Market Funds, Absolute return, Infrastructure, Timber 
and illiquid debt investments. 

Analysis of the movement in the present value of scheme liabilities 

At the beginning of the year 

Current service cost 

Past service cost (including curtailments) 

Interest cost 

Contributions by scheme participants 

Changes in demographic assumptions 

Changes in financial assumptions 

Other experience 

Benefits paid 

At the end of the year 

Analysis of the movement in the fair value of scheme assets 

At the beginning of the year 

Interest income on plan assets 

Contributions by scheme participants 

Contributions by the employer 

Benefits paid 

Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 

At the end of the year 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets, defined benefit obligation and net liability is: 

Opening position 

Current service cost 

Past service cost (including curtailments) 

Interest income on plan assets 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 

Total defined benefit cost recognised in income (or expenditure) 

Employer contributions 

2021 2020 

£'000 £'000 

18,171 

537 

257 

72 

284 

2,077 

(166) 

(274) 

20,958 

16,379 

510 

33 

348 

74 

472 

1,728 

(1 ,123) 

(250) 

18,171 

2021 2020 

£'000 £'000 

12,372 

175 

72 

411 

(274) 

1,997 

14,753 

12,410 

265 

74 

574 

(250) 

(701) 

12,372 

2021 2020 

£'000 £'000 

(5,799) 

(537) 

175 

(257) 

(619) 

411 

(6,007) 

(3 ,969) 

(510) 

(33) 

265 

(348) 

(626) 

574 

(4,021) 
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22 Pension Schemes (continued) 

(ii) Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) (continued) 

Changes in demographic assumptions 

Changes in financial assumptions 

Other experience 

Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 

Total remeasurements recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Fair value of plan assets 

Present value of funded liabilities 

Closing position 

2021 2020 

£'000 £'000 

(284) (472) 

(2,077) (1 ,728) 

166 1,123 

1,997 (701) 

(198) (1 ,778) 

14,753 12,372 

(20,958) (18,171) 

(6,205) (5,799) 

Defined benefit scheme assets do not include any of the University's own financial instruments or any property controlled by the 
University. The estimation of the employer contribution for the defined benefit scheme for the year to 31 July 2022 is £412k. 

Post year end event note reference the USS 
The actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2020 has been completed post year end and a recovery plan has been prepared by the 
Trustee of the Universities Superannuation Scheme. The Trustee has set out steps to be taken to correct the shortfall in the 
Scheme's assets and these are subject to consultation . A decision is required by 28 February 2022 in order to allow at least a full 
calendar month for implementation of the "Benefit Change Deed" by 1 April 2022. Based upon current estimates, the impact of this 
recovery plan is expected to increase the University's required deficit provision by between £18.Bm and £31.4m, depending upon 
whether the Deed is entered into or not. In addition, employer contribution rates have risen from 21 .1 % to 21.4% from 1 October 
2021 . 
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23 Related parties 

24 

Due to the nature of the company's operations and the composition of the Board of Directors being drawn from the senior 
employees of the Partner Colleges and local authorities , ii is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which 
a Director may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a Director may have an interest, including those 
identified below, are carried out at arms-length and in accordance with the company's usual procurement procedures. No balances 
with related parties are secured or provided for. 

Sales Receivables Purchase Payables 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Year ending 31 July 2021 

Board members - in a (!Osition of influence in other organisations 

Eastern HE Cost Sharing Group Ltd 28 11 

Suffolk County Council 383 4 124 52 

Venture Simulations 15 

Student's Union 18 
Joint investor in Eastern HE CSG Ltd 

University of Essex 22 

383 4 207 64 

Year ending 31 July 2020 

Board members - in a (!OSition of influence in other organisations 

Association of University Administrators 5 
Eastern HE Cost Sharing Group Ltd 16 

Suffolk County Council 539 3 915 34 

Suffolk New College 380 

Student's Union 21 

Joint investor in Eastern HE CSG Ltd 

University of Essex 20 7 

559 3 1,344 34 

Accounting estimates and judgements 

Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS) 

FRS 102 makes the distinction between a group plan and a multi-employer scheme. A group plan consists of a collection of entities 
under common control typically with a sponsoring employer. A multi-employer scheme is a scheme for entities not under common 
control and represents (typically) an industry-wide scheme such as that provided by USS. The accounting for a multi-employer 
scheme where the employer has entered into an agreement with the scheme that determines how the employer will fund a deficit 
results in the recognition of a liability for the contributions payable that arise from the agreement (to the extent that they relate to the 
deficit) and the resulting expense is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with section 28 of FRS 102. The directors are 
satisfied that the scheme provided by USS meets the definition of a multi-employer scheme and has therefore recognised the 
discounted fair value of the contractual contributions under the funding plan in existence at the date of approving the financial 
statements . 
In addition, because the USS scheme is in deficit and a funding plan has been agreed section 28 of FRS 102 requires individual 
employers to recognise a liability for the contributions payable that arise from the agreement to fund the scheme (to the extent that 
they relate to the deficit) and the resulting expense in profit and loss. A deficit modeller was utilised to produce the provision 
estimate with a discount rate at the end of 31 July 2021 of 0.87%. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ (income) for 
pensions include the discount rate . Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 22, will impact the carrying 
amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest published full actuarial 
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2021 . Any 
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuations would impact on the carrying 
amount of the pension liability. 
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